
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City 
Recorder at 395-8283 

 
CERTIFICATE OF POSTING  

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the 
City of Washington Terrace City limits and faxed to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  
Amy Rodriguez, Washington Terrace City Recorder  

 

 

 

 
 Planning Commission Meeting  

Thursday, March 26, 2015 
City Hall Council Chambers 

5249 S. South Pointe Dr. Washington Terrace City 
801-393-8681       

 
1. ROLL CALL                                                                           6:00 p.m. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. WELCOME  

 
3.1  OATH OF OFFICE ADMINISTERED TO COMMISSIONERS SCOTT 
LARSEN AND LARRY WEIR 
 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 
 

        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Any point of order or issue regarding items on the Agenda or the order of the agenda need 
to be addressed here prior to the approval of the agenda. 
 

        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR JANUARY 29, 2015 
  

5.  SPECIAL ORDER 
Special orders will proceed as follows: Chair introduction of item, staff/applicant presentation, 
questions by commission, Chair opens public hearing, citizen input; Chair closes public hearing, then 
commission final discussion. 
 

5.1  PUBLIC HEARING: TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON AMENDING   
      CHAPTER 6.04 “ANIMALS” TO ADD SECTION 6.04.20 “FALCONRY”  
      AND AMENDING 17.12.030 “CONDITIONAL USES” TO ADD “FALCONRY” 

     
 

6. NEW BUSINESS            
    
             6.1  MOTION/ORDINANCE 15-03: MOTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL  
                    OF ORDINANCE 15-03 “FALCONRY” 
 
             6.2   MOTION: NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 
           
     7.  UPDATE COMMISSION ON CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND  
          ZONING ISSUES 
 



 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City 
Recorder at 395-8283 

 
CERTIFICATE OF POSTING  

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the 
City of Washington Terrace City limits and faxed to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  
Amy Rodriguez, Washington Terrace City Recorder  

 

 

 

          
8. UPCOMING EVENTS    

April 7th: City Council Meeting – Cancelled 
April 21st: City Council Meeting  6:00 p.m. 
April 30th: Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m.  
 

      9.  MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING   



 

PC Minutes 01-29-15 

 

 

 1 

City of Washington Terrace 2 
                                                3 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 4 

Minutes of a Regular Planning Commission Meeting held on  5 
Thursday, January 29, 2015 6 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 7 
County of Weber, State of Utah          8 

_____________________________________________________________________ 9 
PLANNING COMMISSION AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  10 
Chairman Wallace Reynolds 11 
Commissioner Scott Barker 12 
Commissioner Larry Weir 13 
Commissioner Scott Larsen 14 
Commissioner Charles Allen 15 
Commissioner Dan Johnson- Excused 16 
Vice-Chair T.R. Morgan- Excused 17 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 18 
City Building Official Jeff Monroe   19 
City Manager Tom Hanson 20 
 21 
Others Present  22 
None 23 
 24 

1. ROLL CALL                                                                           6:00 p.m. 25 
 26 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 27 
 28 

3. WELCOME  29 
 30 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 31 
 32 

        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 33 
 Motion by Commissioner Weir 34 

 Seconded by Commissioner Larsen 35 
 to approve the agenda 36 

 Approved unanimously (5-0) 37 
  38 

        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR NOVEMBER 20, 2014 39 
Commissioner Allen suggested a grammar correction on Line 47. The minutes will be corrected 40 
before printed.  41 

 Motion by Commissioner Larsen 42 
 Seconded by Commissioner Barker 43 

 to approve the minutes of November 20, 2014 44 
 Approved unanimously (5-0) 45 

 46 
 47 



 

PC Minutes 01-29-15 

 

 

5.  SPECIAL ORDER 48 
Special orders will proceed as follows: Chair introduction of item, staff/applicant presentation, 49 
questions by commission, Chair opens public hearing, citizen input; Chair closes public hearing, then 50 
commission final discussion. 51 
 52 

5.1     PUBLIC HEARING: TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON AMENDING SECTION 53 
     17.28.020 RELATING TO SITE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS IN THE  54 
     COMMERCIAL ZONE 55 
 56 
Chairman Reynolds opened the public hearing at 6:03 p.m. 57 
There were no citizen comments. 58 

Chairman Reynolds closed the public hearing at 6:04 p.m. 59 
 60 

Motion by Commissioner Weir 61 
Seconded by Commissioner Larsen 62 

To close the public hearing 63 
Approved unanimously (5-0) 64 

 65 
6.    NEW BUSINESS               66 

             6.1  DISCUSSION/MOTION: RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL 67 
                    TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 15-01 “COMMERCIAL SITE  68 
                    DEVELOPMENT AMENDED” RELATING TO SITE DEVELOPMENT 69 
                    STANDARDS IN THE COMMERCIAL ZONE          70 
 71 
Monroe stated that this amendment would raise the building height on commercial properties to 72 
45 feet. This height requirement will allow for equipment on the roof to be hidden. It will also 73 
eliminate buildings that have 2.5 stories and build into the ground to accommodate 3 floors. 74 
Monroe stated that the hospital approached the City a few years back stating that they would 75 
need to build upward to allow for them to compete with other hospitals. This amendment will 76 
allow the hospital to build more floors with site plan and conditional use approval. 77 
Monroe stated that the professional building in the hospital is currently above the 35 foot height 78 
requirement. Monroe stated that the Woodland Cove Apartments are one foot higher than the 79 
requirements. Monroe stated that this amendment will help the Realtor Association with their 80 
new building and hopefully help bring in retail stores to the lower levels. 81 
Monroe stated that according to standards, each floor is around 12 feet, leaving around 9 feet for 82 
builders to work with to put equipment on the roof. 83 
Monroe stated that the hospital has a code that is separate from business code. He stated that they 84 
would need a conditional use approval to build over the height requirements. 85 
Monroe noted that buildings would still need to build to established grade level according to 86 
building standards. 87 

 88 
Motion by Commissioner Barker 89 
Seconded by Commissioner Allen  90 

To approve a favorable recommendation to 91 
Council to approve Ordinance 15-01” Commercial Site 92 

Development Amended” 93 
Approved unanimously (5-0) 94 

 95 



 

PC Minutes 01-29-15 

 

 

 96 
     7.  UPDATE COMMISSION ON CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND  97 
          ZONING ISSUES  98 
Monroe stated that there are no current development projects. 99 
Chairman Reynolds stated that he and the Commission appreciated the Council dinner. 100 

          101 
8. UPCOMING EVENTS    102 

February 3 City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 103 
February 17th City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 104 
February 26th: Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 105 
 106 

9. MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING   107 
 108 

Motion by Commissioner Barker 109 
Seconded by Commissioner Larsen  110 

To adjourn the meeting 111 
Approved unanimously 112 

Time: 6:16 p.m. 113 
 114 
 115 
_________________________________     ________________________________ 116 
Date Approved                                             City Recorder 117 
 118 



 Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

      
 

  
 

 

Author:   Planning Dept. 

Subject:  AMEND Chapter 17.12.030 SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONES & ADD 

CHAPTER 6.04.200 ANIMALS  

Date:  March 26, 2015 

Type of Item: Public Hearing/Discussion/Action 
 

Summary Recommendations: FOLLOWING THE PUBLIC HEARING, MAKE A MOTION TO RECOMMEND 
APPROVAL OR DENY OR TABLE; TO AMEND CHAPTER 17.12.030 “SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONES, 
CONDITIONAL USES” ORDINANCE AND ADD CHAPTER 6.04.200, “FALCONRY”  
 
Description:  
 
A. Background:The purpose of this amendment is to add falconry to Chapter 17.12.030 for conditional use 
requirements in the Single Family Residential zone and to add a section 6.04.200, titled ”Falconry” in chapter 6.04 
Animals. The city at this time does not allow falconry within the city.  

A complaint had been filed with the city concerning a resident with a falcon and a citation was issued. The 
owner of the falcon, who is a licensed falconer by the State and Federal Government, went before the City 
Council to plead his case in allowing falconry.   
 The City Council then recommended reviewing the impact falconry would have and create an ordinance 
for falconry.  
 The City Staff has moved forward with creating an ordinance to try and allow falconry without impacting 
neighbors and bring a negative impact to neighborhoods. One of the complaints is that the feeders, which are live 
animals, are used to feed the falcon and the pens or mews are very close to neighboring property.   
 
B. Analysis:   The proposed amendment and addition to chapter 17, “Zoning” and chapter 6, “Animals”, has 
been developed to reference and allow falconry if someone desires to perform falconry within the city. 

The addition and amendment to title 17.12.030, “conditional use”, provides requirements and 
conditions for obtaining a falconry conditional use permit. 

 All conditions are important and the following are those conditions that apply to receiving a conditional 
use permit for falconry.  
1. Falconry of not more than one (1) falcon, per lot, in any single-family zone subject to: 

a. A valid state and/or federal permit and compliance with Section 6.04.200. 
b. All bird housing facilities for a falcon must be inspected by the animal control officer, or the 

building inspector and/or the conservation officer and found to meet the standards for obtaining a 
bird for use in falconry. 

c. All bird housing facilities must provide humane and healthful living conditions for the bird. 
d. All bird housing facilities shall be kept locked and secure. 
e. All bird housing facilities shall be kept clean and orderly. 
f. Temporary possession of a falcon within the city is not permitted. 
g. The keeping or feeding of any live animal(s) for any falcon is not permitted. A falcon may not 

feed on any live animal in the city. 
h. It is unlawful to use any falcon to engage in flying or hunting within the city. 
i. Setbacks for any bird housing mews and weathering areas must be at least 15 feet from any 

adjoining property lines. 
Reasons for the above items some conditions are self explanatory, a,b,c,d,e,f, but g,h,and i, may bring up some 
questions and rationale for those provision.  
 
Provision or condition: 
  (g), feeding of falcons with live animals: first concern is the type of animals that are considered as 
feeders; generally they are pigeons and mice which are a nuisance/pest, which brings an undesirable element to 
a community. Pigeons, for example, if just kept in a coop can bring the smell, filth, bugs , mice and parasites that 

Building & Planning  



Page 2 
 
come with pigeons. This  gives people a reason to call and complain and of course mice bring their own set of 
problems. For this reason the city feels that live animals should not be permitted as feeders. 

(h). hunting or flying of any falcon within the city: due to the residential climate and typical neighborhood 
layout of a city,  restricting hunting and flying maintains a feel and environment expected when living within a city 
or community.  The desire or the expectation of the majority of residents in a community is a neighborhood free of 
wild predators or animals of prey.  
 (i). Setbacks for bird housing. The setback should be for both the bird and the neighbor, as it has been 
determined that tampering or accidental disturbance of the pen or cage can cause stress to the falcon,which 
creates an undesirable condition for the bird.  Closeness of the pen may also cause stress to a neighboring 
property owner. It is the expectation of a neighbor adjacent to a falconry habitat to expect a desirable atmosphere 
as part of living in a single family residential neighborhood.  The setback of 15 feet provides a favorable condition 
to neighboring property/residents. 
 
Chapter 6, “Animals”: title 6.04.200 adds Falconry to the Municipal code, also adds licensing and obtaining a 
Conditional use permit and a fee which will be determined by the adopted fee schedule and the fee set by the City 
Council. 
6.04.200. Falconry. 
1. Scope. This section applies to persons who seek to operate a falconry. “Falconry” means the sport of 

keeping, raising, and training falcons for hunting or otherwise, including, but not limited to, domestication 
and flight training of a falcon under the direction of a licensed trainer or trainee. 

2. Permit. Any person who desires to keep, maintain, or otherwise operate a falconry shall first obtain the 
appropriate permit from the governing state agency and/or federal agency. Upon obtaining the required 
state and/or federal permit(s), a person may apply for a conditional use permit from the City for a falconry 
before keeping any falcon within the City. The conditional use permit in the municipal code is in addition 
to any other requirements under state and/or federal laws. 

3. License. Upon obtaining the conditional use permit specified in the municipal code, any permit may apply 
from a license to keep, maintain, and operate a falconry provided in this section. 

4. Fees. An annual license fee for each falconry is (will be set by the annual fee schedule which is approved 
by the City Council)( the fee will be set by the City Council)-- $Fee-- and shall be paid to the city. 

5. General Provisions. Any licensee shall immediately report to the city’s animal control provider any injuries, 
beyond unbroken scratching or biting, caused to another person or another animal by any falcon. It shall 
be unlawful for any person to sell, offer for sale, trade, gift, or purchase any falcon to any person who 
does not have a permit and license under this section. 

 
Please refer to the attached ordinance for the amendment and addition in the full form.  
  
C. Department Review: After reviewing and considering both the falconry position and  the neighbors/residents 
position, staff feels that the amendments and additions recommended for this ordinance provide a way for both 
parties to coexist. Staff is still indifferent on the approval of this ordinance.      
 
Accept Public Input, Adopt/not adopt ordinance  
 
Alternatives: 
A. Approve the Request: 
The Planning Commission can make their recommendation and approve Ordinance 15-3 to the City Council,   
B. Deny the Request: 
The Planning Commission can deny the recommendation of Ordinance 15-3 and forward the recommendation to 
the City Council  
C. Continue the Item: 
The Planning Commission may table the request to a later meeting, subject to suggesting additional information, 
or requiring changes to the ordinance prior to making a recommendation.   
 
Significant Impacts:   The significant impact if amended is to the animal control in regulating and collecting 
licensing fees.   



WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY 
ORDINANCE 15-03 

 
FALCONRY 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE, 
UTAH, ADOPTING SECTION 6.04.200 AND AMENDING 
17.12.030 RELATING TO CONDITIONAL USES IN THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE; PROVIDING LICENSING 
REQUIREMENTS; MAKING TECHNICAL CHANGES; 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Washington Terrace City (hereafter referred to as “City”) is a municipal 
corporation, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Utah; 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code Annotated §§ 10-8-84 and 10-8-60 authorizes the City to exercise 
certain police powers and nuisance abatement powers, including but not limited to providing for safety 
and preservation of health, promotion of prosperity, improve community well-being, peace and good 
order for the inhabitants of the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to permit individuals who seeks to operate a falconry as provided in 
the municipal code; 
 
 WHEREAS, Title 10, Chapter 9a, of the Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, enables the 
City to regulate land use and development; 
 
 WHEREAS, after publication of the required notice, the Planning Commission held its public 
hearing on March 26, 2015, to take public comment on this Ordinance, and subsequently gave its 
recommendation to ________________ this Ordinance; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council received the recommendation from the Planning Commission and 
held its public meeting on April 21, 2015, and desires to act on this Ordinance; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of Washington Terrace City as 
follows: 
 
Section 1: Repealer.  Any word other, sentence, paragraph, or phrase inconsistent with this 

Ordinance is hereby repealed and any reference thereto is hereby vacated. 
 
Section 2: Adoption and Amendment. Section 6.04.200 entitled “Falconry” is hereby adopted to 

read as provided herein, Section 17.12.030 entitled “Conditional Uses” is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

 
6.04.200. Falconry. 
1. Scope. This section applies to persons who seek to operate a falconry. A “Falconry” means the 

sport of keeping, raising, and training falcons for hunting or otherwise, including, but not limited 
to, domestication and flight training of a falcon under the direction of a licensed trainer or trainee. 

2. Permit. Any person who desires to keep, maintain, or otherwise operate a falconry shall first 
obtain the appropriate permit from the governing state agency and/or federal agency. Upon 



Washington Terrace City Page 2 
Ordinance No. 2015-01 – Falconry 
 

obtaining the required state and/or federal permit(s), a person may apply for a conditional use 
permit from the City for a falconry before keeping any falcon within the City. The conditional use 
permit in the municipal code is in addition to any other requirements under state and/or federal 
laws. 

3. License. Upon obtaining the conditional use permit specified in the municipal code, any permit 
may apply from a license to keep, maintain, and operate a falconry provided in this section. 

4. Fees. An annual license fee for each falconry is (will be set by the annual fee schedule which is 
approved by the City Council)( the fee will be set by the City Council)-- $Fee-- and shall be paid 
to the city. 

5. General Provisions. Any licensee shall immediately report to the city’s animal control provider 
any injuries, beyond unbroken scratching or biting, caused to another person or another animal by 
any falcon. It shall be unlawful for any person to sell, offer for sale, trade, gift, or purchase any 
falcon to any person who does not have a permit and license under this section. 

 
17.12.030. Conditional Uses. 
The following uses shall be allowed in the single-family residential zones only when authorized by a 
conditional use permit:  
1. Beekeeping of not more than three (3) hives and in accordance with the Utah Bee Inspection Act 

set forth in Title 4, Chapter 11 of the Utah Code, as amended. Beehives are to be kept in side or 
rear yard and at least ten (10) feet away from any adjoining property line. 

2. Home occupation with visiting clientele. 
3. Private recreational grounds and facilities not open to the general public and to which no 

admission charge is made. 
4. Public utility substations or water storage facilities developed by a public agency. 
5. Residential facilities for the elderly or disabled persons which conform to the requirements of the 

applicable state or federal law. 
6. Falconry of not more than one (1) falcon, per lot, in any single-family zone subject to: 

a. A valid state and/or federal permit and compliance with Section 6.04.200. 
b. All bird housing facilities for a falcon must be inspected by Animal control, Building 

inspector and/or a conservation officer and found to meet the standards for obtaining a 
bird for use in falconry. 

c. All bird housing facilities must provide humane and healthful living conditions for the 
bird. 

d. All bird housing facilities shall be kept locked and secure. 
e. All bird housing facilities shall be kept clean and orderly. 
f. Temporary possession of a falcon within the city is not permitted. 
g. The keeping or feeding of any live animal(s) for any falcon is not permitted. A falcon 

may not feed on any live animal in the city. 
h. It is unlawful to use any falcon to engage in flying and/or hunting within the city. 
i. Setbacks for any bird housing mews and weathering areas must be at least 15 feet from 

any adjoining property lines. 
 
Section 3:  Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any part of this 

Ordinance is unconstitutional or invalid, then such portion of this Ordinance, or specific 
application of this Ordinance, shall be severed from the remainder, which remainder shall 
continue in full force and effect. 

 



Washington Terrace City Page 3 
Ordinance No. 2015-03 – Falconry 
 
Section 4:  Effective date.  This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon posting or 

publication after final passage. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of _________, 2015. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
 
 
  
MARK C. ALLEN, Mayor, 
Washington Terrace City 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
AMY RODRIGUEZ, 
City Recorder 
 
 
RECORDED this ___ day of ___________, 2015. 
PUBLISHED OR POSTED this ___ day of ___________, 2015. 
 

CERTIFICATE OF PASSAGE AND PUBLICATION OR POSTING 
According to the provision of U.C.A. §10-3-713, 1953 as amended, I, the municipal recorder of 
Washington Terrace City, hereby certify that foregoing Ordinance was duly passed and published, or 
posted at 1)_________________ 2)________________ and 3)_________________ on the above 
referenced dates. 
 
 
___________________________________  DATE:_______________ 
City Recorder 
 


